
Planning Board Minutes, October 19, 2016 1 

Borough of Franklin Lakes 
Bergen County, New Jersey 

Planning Board Minutes 
October 19, 2016 

Regular Meeting 
 

Meeting Called to Order at 7:35PM 

 
Open Public Meetings Statement: Read into the record by Chairwoman 
Vierheilig 

 
Salutation to the Flag 

 
Preamble: Read into the record by Chairwoman Vierheilig 
 

Roll Call: Mayor Bivona, Councilman Kahwaty, Messrs. Gostkowski, Lauber, 
Pullaro (absent), Chairwoman Vierheilig, Messrs. Linz, Sheppard, Ms. Mucci, 
Mr. Ochs  
 
Fire Safety Announcement: Read into the record by Chairwoman 

Vierheilig 
 
Also in Attendance: Mark Madaio Esq., Board Attorney; Ms. Rebecca E. Mejia, 
Boswell Engineering/Board Engineer; JoAnn Carroll, Recording Secretary 

 
Board Discussion: 
 
Mayor Bivona: asked if the Toll Brothers Developer’s Agreement should be 
presented to the Planning Board before it is signed at the Mayor and Council 
level. 
 
Mr. Madaio: stated the Board members should have received a copy of the Toll 
Brothers Developer’s Agreement, and if they are comfortable with it, the 
Chairwoman can sign it this evening; has always been the practice as a 
courtesy to have the Planning Board review the document and comment on it; 
Mr. Smith, the Borough Attorney, has prepared the Developer’s Agreement for 
Toll Brothers because he is more familiar with the applicant; further stated 
that the Developer’s Agreement incorporates all that was done during the 
multiple Board sessions; asked that all Board members review the document, 
and if they have any issues, to please let Mayor Bivona know before it is 
executed at the Mayor and Council level.  
 
Mayor Bivona: directed the Acting Board Secretary to have the Toll Brothers 
Developer’s Agreement distributed to the Board and ask the members to 
submit any comments they may have; in addition, the Developer’s Agreement is 
to be placed on the November 2, 2016 agenda for a motion for the Chairwoman 
to execute it and for it to be sent to the Mayor and Council. 
 



Planning Board Minutes, October 19, 2016 2 

Approval of Minutes: Mayor Bivona, Gostkowski 
Ayes: Mayor Bivona, Gostkowski, Lauber, Chairwoman Vierheilig, Linz, Mucci, 
Ochs 
Recused: Councilman Kahwaty 

 
Oral Communications: None 
 

 
Resolution: 
Danza Crest, LLC; Preliminary Major Subdivision, 85 Pulis Avenue, Block 
2701, Lot 3: Approved 
 

Mr. Madaio: reviewed the application and the resolution. 
 
Motion to approve the resolution: Mayor Bivona, Linz 
Ayes: Mayor Bivona, Councilman Kahwaty, Gostkowski, Lauber, Chairwoman 
Vierheilig, Linz, Mucci, Ochs 
 

 
L&L Property Group, LLC; 841 Franklin Avenue, Block 1514, Lot 4: 
Parking Expansion Plan 

 
Jack Van Horne, Esq., Reeve & Van Horne, attorney for the applicant: 
stated the application was for a parking expansion plan; asking the Board to 
grant variance relief from the Zoning Ordinance for parking spaces that are 
9x18 where 10x20 are required; a 2008 resolution of the Planning Board 
approved 9x18 spaces; there are 52 spaces on the site; expanding to 66 spaces; 
more parking is needed to eliminate patrons of the businesses in the building 
from parking off site. 
 
Motion to deem the application complete and to open the public hearing: 
Councilman Kahwaty, Lauber 
Ayes: Mayor Bivona, Councilman Kahwaty, Gostkowski, Lauber, Chairwoman 
Vierheilig, Linz, Sheppard, Mucci, Ochs 
 
Mr. Bob Weissman, Weissman Engineering, applicant’s engineer: accepted 
as an expert in the field of engineering; sworn in by Mr. Madaio; stated he 
prepared the plan which was submitted with the application; there have been 
parking issues; there has been medical offices occupying the building since the 
original approval; the intent is to expand the parking area to the rear of the 
building; referring to the plan, it is on the right side; southeasterly side; there 
are wetlands on the property; an LOI was received with the original approval; 
still in play; no improvements will impose on the wetland buffers; intent is to go 
from 52 spaces to 66; minor modification to parking internally; 66 spaces is 
over the actual requirement; 59 spaces are required per the parking 
calculations; 66 spaces would eliminate the need for off site parking; complying 
with coverage; a height variance was previously granted; minor tree removal of 
2 small trees; lighting will be relocated; everything else that was originally 



Planning Board Minutes, October 19, 2016 3 

approved is still in place; only variance is for the 9x18 spaces vs. 10x20 which 
is required; Boswell Engineering has reviewed the plan; they issued a letter 
dated October 5, 2016 addressing some issues; it is the applicant’s intent to 
comply with items 8-14 of Boswell’s letter. 
 
Ms. Mejia: stated the site plan needs to be revised; it shows 63 spaces when 
the number is really 66. 
 
Mr. Van Horne: asked Mr. Weissman how long the construction would take. 
 
Mr. Weissman: stated it would take about a month to build; during that time 
there will be an arrangement with the shopping center across the street for 
parking; there will be 7 spaces affected in total. 
 
Mr. Lauber: stated he did not see a 50 ft. setback line from the wetlands on the 
plans. 
 
Mr. Weissman: stated it is shown but unfortunately printed out very light; a 
silt fence will be introduced as per Boswell’s request; the wetlands are being 
respected. 
 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked if the setback line was along where the old wall 
is. 
 
Mr. Weissman: stated it is at varying distances; the line is very light; it curves 
up to the top. 
 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked if the existing retaining wall was being removed 
and a new one constructed. 
 
Mr. Weissman: stated that was correct. 
 
Chairwoman Vierheilig: asked if the dumpster was being relocated to the 
back. 
 
Mr. Weissman: stated yes; the owner’s space is in front of it; a private 
company does the hauling; similar in location to where it is now to the south 
side of the site; space in front of it will be an owner’s occupied space. 
 
Councilman Kahwaty: asked if the number 7 area was compromising on the 
fire zone. 
 
Mr. Weissman: stated the fire zone would remain; there will be parking up 
against the curb line; the lane will continue in the northeasterly direction. 
 
Mr. Linz: stated the curb line where the applicant is adding spaces is a no 
parking area; the entire fire zone will be eliminated. 
 



Planning Board Minutes, October 19, 2016 4 

Mr. Weissman: stated it will be relocated to a drive lane farther southeasterly 
from that location. 
 
Mr. Linz: stated a clear access area is not given to get into the building; it is a 
tight site covered with parking; by bringing parking spaces out, doubts if a fire 
truck would be able to get around to turn around in the back. 
 
Mr. Weissman: stated the most northerly space can be eliminated to give a 
wider radius in that location. 
 
Mr. Linz: stated he can provide Mr. Weissman with the dimensions of the 
truck, which he believes would be helpful to him. 
 
Mr. Weissman: stated the one space can be eliminated; identified the space as 
the most northerly row on the spaces adjacent to the southeast side of the 
building. 
 
Mayor Bivona: stated, regarding the need for more spaces, when the 
application was originally approved it was for 52 spaces; now the need is 66; 
asked what drove the increase; asked if it was the medical uses; in addition, 
asked if when it was built, if medical uses were anticipated. 
 
Mr. Van Horne: stated it was the medical use, which has come into play in the 
last couple of years. 
 
Mr. Lawrence Lovecchio, managing partner of L&L Property Group, LLC: 
sworn in by Mr. Madaio; stated he is familiar with the make up of the tenancy; 
purchased the property from Abbott & Caserta in 2007; the land was fully 
approved for a 11,000 sq. ft. office building; construction was started; when 
done they had their tenants in place; only one tenant change happened in the 
first year; prepared a summary of the existing tenants with the number of 
employees and the square footage of each space. 
 
Exhibit A1 plans prepared by Robert Weissman; Exhibit A2: summary of 
existing tenants at 841 Franklin Avenue prepared by Lawrence Lovecchio. 
 

Mr. Lovecchio: stated all the tenants are the same since the beginning except 
for one; changed from an accountant to a dermatologist after one year. 
 
Mayor Bivona: stated he is interested in the uses; asked if the medical uses 
were driving the need for more spaces. 
 
Mr. Lovecchio: stated they are the busiest on Tuesdays and Thursdays. 
 
Mayor Bivona: asked if all the offices were medical uses, would there be 
enough spaces. 
 



Planning Board Minutes, October 19, 2016 5 

Mr. Lovecchio: stated yes; 66 spaces would be fine; when there were no 
spaces in the parking lot people were parking in the circle; it became an issue; 
is here before the Board to fix this problem. 
 
Mr. Madaio: stated it was mentioned earlier that the requirement was 59 
spaces; there are currently 52; asked how the 66 number was determined. 
 
Mr. Weissman: stated 59 are based on the current tenancy; the original 
approval was based on all office occupancy, which was a total of 44. 
 
Mr. Madaio: stated when the building was occupied they were short per the 
code because they were approved for general office, but a lot of the use was 
medical; now the applicant is bringing it up to a number that is exceeding even 
the medical office use. 
 
Mr. Lovecchio: stated even if their tenant State Farm were to move out, they 
would still have enough parking. 
 
Mayor Bivona: asked if the spaces were being changed to 9x18. 
 
Mr. Weissman: stated the 9x18 spaces were pre-approved; the new spaces in 
the back would be 9x18. 
 
No questions from the public. 
 

Motion to close the public hearing: Councilman Kahwaty, Mayor Bivona 
All in Favor 
 

Motion to approve the application with the stipulation that one parking 
space is to be removed to allow a fire truck to maneuver around the back 
of the building: Councilman Kahwaty, Lauber 
Ayes: Mayor Bivona, Councilman Kahwaty, Gostkowski, Lauber, Chairwoman 
Vierheilig, Linz, Sheppard, Mucci, Ochs 
 
 

 
Motion to adjourn: Councilman Kahwaty, Mayor Bivona 
All in Favor 
 

Meeting adjourned at 8:05PM 
 
Respectfully submitted by: 
 
JoAnn Carroll 
Recording Secretary 
October 22, 2016 
  

 


